

2 3		Selectboard Regular Meeting Wednesday, March 12, 2025 at 6:00 PM
4		Chris Letourneau Meeting Room and via Zoom
5		Minutes
6 7		Zoom Details:
8	,	https://us02web.zoom.us/j/6165843896?pwd=STduU2JzTmpiVmE1MXZSaWZWLzVadz09
9		Meeting ID: 616 584 3896 Passcode: 5243524
10		Dial by your Location: 1 929 205 6099 (New York)
11		
12		CALL TO ORDER: 6:02PM
13 14		SELECTBOARD PRESENT
15		Brian Dunsmore, Paul Jansen, Carl Rosenquist, Kristina Senna
16		STAFF PRESENT
17 18		Doug Bergstrom, Todd Cadieux, Kollene Caspers, Lori Hobart, Stacy Katon, Cheryl Letourneau,
19		Bridget Stone (via Zoom)
20		PUBLIC PRESENT
21 22		Heather Dunsmore, Tony Heinlein, Craig Volatile-Wood, Ken Minck, Noah Lavallee (via Zoom),
23		Sue Webster (via Zoom)
24	1	
25 26	1.	PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE A. Town Administrator- Reorganization Of The Board Members
27		The Town Thanking and Thorganization of the Doute Memories
28		Motion to Nominate Kristina Senna for Selectboard Chair
29		Motion made by P. Jansen, Seconded by B. Dunsmore
30 31		Voting Yea: B. Dunsmore, P. Jansen, C. Rosenquist, K. Senna
32		Motion to Nominate Brian Dunsmore for Selectboard Vice Chair
33		Motion made by P. Jansen, Seconded by C. Rosenquist
34 25		Voting Yea: B. Dunsmore, P. Jansen, C. Rosenquist, K. Senna
35 36		B. Reorganization Meeting
37		 Motion to nominate <u>Kollene Caspers</u> as Selectboard Clerk, for a one-year term, made by P.
38		Jansen, seconded by B. Dunsmore. No further discussion. All in favor.

39	• Motion to nominate <u>James Powell</u> and <u>Leigh Horton</u> for Development Review Board
40	member(s) for a three-year term, made by P. Jansen, seconded by B. Dunsmore. One DRB
41	position is OPEN. All in favor.
42 43	• Motion to nominate <u>Chris Caspers</u> as Development Review Board alternate, for a one-year term, made by P. Jansen, seco seconded by B. Dunsmore. One alternate position is OPEN.
45 44	All in favor.
	 Motion to nominate <u>Eric Nye</u> as Tree Warden, for a one-year term, made by C. Rosenquist,
45 46	seconded by B. Dunsmore. No further discussion. All in favor.
40 47	 Motion to nominate Kristina Senna and Carl Rosenquist as Selectboard Representatives to
47 48	the Georgia Industrial Development Corporation, for one-year terms, made by P. Jansen,
49	seconded by B. Dunsmore. No further discussion. All in favor.
50	 Motion to nominate, <u>Cheryl Letourneau</u>, <u>Stacey Davis</u>, <u>Kollene Caspers</u>, <u>Lori Hobart and</u>
51	<u>Deborah Mann</u> for one-year terms for Georgia Community Events Committee (GCEC),
52	made by P. Jansen, seconded by C. Rosenquist. No further discussion. All in favor.
53	• Motion to nominate <u>Kollene Caspers</u> as Town Health Officer, for a one-year term, made by
54	P. Jansen, seconded by B. Dunsmore. Deputy Town Heath Officer position is OPEN. All in
55	favor.
56	• Motion to appoint Sara Currier as Animal Control Officer and Jim Benson as Assistant
57	Animal Control Officer, for one-year terms, made by C. Rosenquist, seconded by B.
58	Dunsmore. No further discussion. All in favor.
59	• Motion to appoint <u>Kirk Waite</u> and <u>Carl Rosenquist</u> as Georgia Representatives to Northwest
60	Regional Planning Commission, for one-year terms, made by B. Dunsmore, seconded by P.
61	Jansen. No further discussion. All in favor.
62	• Motion to appoint <u>Suzanna Brown</u> as Georgia Representative to the Northwest Regional
63	Planning Commission Transportation Advisory Committee, for a one-year term, made by C.
64	Rosenquist, seconded by B. Dunsmore. No further discussion. All in favor.
65	 Motion to appoint <u>Zachary Burdick</u> as the representative to the Northwest Communications
66	Unified District (CUD) for a one-year term, made by C. Rosenquist, seconded by B.
67	Dunsmore. Two alternate positions are OPEN. All in favor.
68	• Motion to appoint <u>Alysia Catalfamo</u> and <u>Tom Hargy</u> as representatives, for four-year terms,
69	and <u>Connor O'Driscoll</u> as alternate for a one-year term, on the Conservation Commission,
70	made by P. Jansen, seconded by B. Dunsmore. No further discussion. All in favor.
71	• Motion to appoint <u>Paul Lambert</u> as the Georgia Representative to the Northwest Solid Waste
72 72	District for a one-year term, made by C. Rosenquist, seconded by B. Dunsmore. No further discussion. All in favor.
73	
74 75	• Motion to appoint all the Selectboard members as authorized signers of Town warrants, for
75 76	one-year terms, made by C. Rosenquist, seconded by B. Dunsmore. No further discussion. All in favor.
76 77	 Motion to appoint Stitzel Page & Fletcher as the Town's Primary Legal Counsel; and
77 78	• Wotton to appoint Suzer Fage & Fletcher as the Town's Finnary Legal Counsel, and Kimball & Storrow as Town's Secondary Legal Counsel, for one-year terms, made by C.
78 79	Rosenquist, seconded by B. Dunsmore. No further discussion. All in favor.
80	 Motion to set the St. Albans Messenger as the official paper for the Town of Georgia, with
80 81	Seven Days to be used in an emergency basis only, made by C. Rosenquist, seconded by B.
82	Dunsmore. No further discussion. All in favor.

83		• Motion to charge for town equipment at the State Agency of Transportation rate, unless it is
84		a FEMA project, if it is a FEMA project, then FEMA rates will be charged, made by C.
85		Rosenquist, seconded by B. Dunsmore. No further discussion. All in favor.
86		• Motion to set the Animal Control Fines based on the current fine schedule, made by C.
87		Rosenquist, seconded by B. Dunsmore. No further discussion. All in favor.
88		• Per 24 V.S.A. §871, Motion to re-affirm the current Selectboard policies, rules of procedure
89		and the meeting schedule of 2 nd and 4 th Mondays, 6:00pm, every month, utilizing the agenda
90		now in place, made by C. Rosenquist, seconded by B. Dunsmore. No further discussion. All
91		in favor.
92		• Motion to re-affirm the Town of Georgia Ethics Policy made by made by B. Dunsmore,
93		seconded by C. Rosenquist. No further discussion. All in favor.
94		• Motion to appoint Terri Sabens as the Town's Assessor, for a one-year term, made by made
95		by C. Rosenquist, seconded by B. Dunsmore. The current Assessor, Hinman Assessments,
96		LLC will finish out the contract and T. Sabens will then take over. All in favor.
97		• Motion to set forth the following wages for Planning Commission, Development Review
98		Board and Board of Civil Authority, compensation shall be set at \$20.00 per meeting
99		attended as per policy that "Board Members will not be paid for meetings where they are
100		representing themselves or another party", made by B. Dunsmore, seconded by C.
101		Rosenquist. No further discussion. All in favor.
102		• Motion to set the wages for Moderator and Parliamentarian at minimum wage rate, made by
103		C. Rosenquist, seconded by B. Dunsmore. No further discussion. All in favor.
104		• Per 24 V.S.A Sections 1953 and 1954, motion to appoint Fire Officers based on the
105		recommendation from Chief Baker for 1 st Assistant Chief: Patrick King, Captain: Eric
106		Couture, 1 st Lieutenant: Jamieson Barber and 2 nd Lieutenant: Todd Cadieux for one-year
107		terms, made by C. Rosenquist, seconded by B. Dunsmore. No further discussion. All in
108		favor.
100		
109 110	2.	CHAIR UPDATE
111	4.	CHAIR OIDATE
112	3.	ADDITIONS, DELETIONS, OR CHANGES TO THE AGENDA
113		• S. Katon requested addition of Draft Minutes for Special Meeting 2/24/2025 (action to
114		approve (4A); Add Resolution for Errors in the 2025 Town Meeting Warning (7J); and add
115		the discussion of Selectboard vacancies (7K).
116		• L. Hobart requested the addition of Warrants #2507 for \$736.07 & Warrant #2508 for
117		\$226.23 (4B).
118		
119		Motion to add the above additions to the Agenda.
120		Motion made by P. Jansen, Seconded by C. Rosenquist
121		Voting Yea: B. Dunsmore, P. Jansen, C. Rosenquist, K. Senna
122	1	SELECTBOARD MINUTES AND WARRANTS
123 124	4.	A. Approval of Selectboard Regular Meeting Minutes for 2/24/2025 Regular Meeting
124		r. reproval of Selectobard Regular Wreeting Winnutes for 2/24/2025 Regular Wreeting
126		Motion to approve the minutes with no changes.
-		

127 128		Motion made by P. Jansen, Seconded by C. Rosenquist Voting Yea: B. Dunsmore, P. Jansen, C. Rosenquist, K. Senna
129 130		Approval of Selectboard Special Meeting Minutes for 2/24/2025 Special Meeting
131 132 133 134		Motion to approve the minutes with no changes. Motion made by C. Rosenquist, Seconded by P. Jansen Voting Yea: B. Dunsmore, P. Jansen, C. Rosenquist, K. Senna
135 136		B. Approval of Warrants #2506
137 138		Motion to approve Warrant #2506
139 140		Motion made by P. Jansen, Seconded by B. Dunsmore Voting Yea: B. Dunsmore, P. Jansen, C. Rosenquist, K. Senna
141 142 143 144		Motion to approve Warrant #2507 Motion made by B. Dunsmore, Seconded by P. Jansen Voting Yea: B. Dunsmore, P. Jansen, C. Rosenquist, K. Senna
145 146		Motion to approve Warrant #2508
147 148		Motion made by P. Jansen, Seconded by B. Dunsmore Voting Yea: B. Dunsmore, P. Jansen, C. Rosenquist, K. Senna
149 150	5.	TOWN ADMINISTRATOR, TREASURER AND SELECTBOARD SUB-COMMITTEES
151 152		REPORTS
153 154 155 156		 A. Georgia Conservation Committe-Ken Minck-Grant Approval Request-Silverlake Road Culvert- K. Minck explained the Conservation Commission grant for Silver Lake culvert, installation and permitting. Conservation Commission is requesting permission to apply for a Grant, and \$11,000 Town of Georgia contribution.
157 158		• The funds for the grant are not currently budgeted in the Town Budget, and there are missing/outdated estimates for the work.
159 160 161		B. TreasurerSignatures Needed for Bond Bank-Lori needs signatures for authorized people to speak with Bond Bank.
162 163		• L. Hobart will reach out to US Bank for additional information on the investment options.
164 165 166 167		Motion to allow L. Hobart authority to sign the paperwork and S. Katon for callback number. Motion made by B. Dunsmore, Seconded by C. Rosenquist Voting Yea: B. Dunsmore, P. Jansen, C. Rosenquist, K. Senna
168 169		C. PersonnelFire Chief request Approval to Hire
170 171 172		Matthew Gonzalez to be hired by Chief Baker for the Fire Department Motion made by C. Rosenquist, Seconded by B. Dunsmore. Voting Yea: B. Dunsmore, P. Jansen, C. Rosenquist, K. Senna
173 174		D. Georgia Public Library Board of Trustees-Conflict of Interest & Ethics Discussion

175		There is a potential Conflict of Interest and Ethics violation after Nicole Jamison was voted	in
176		as Library Trustee, given that her child, Megan Jamison, is currently an employee of the	
177		Georgia Public Library.	
178		K. Caspers explained the Library Trustees would like Nicole to stay on the Board, as the	
179		community voted her in and the Selectboard could allow it, per the Conflict of Interest and	
180		Ethics policy (2025).	
181		B. Stone read a letter from N. Jamison in support of her position. M. Jamison will continue	
182		their work at the Georgia Public Library thru July 2025.	
183		S. Katon, serving as Ethics Liaison for the Town of Georgia, explained an Ethics Complaint	t
184		was filed with the State of Vermont Ethics Commission. She spoke with the Executive	ι
184		Director of the State Ethics Commission, who stated N. Jamison could serve as a Member a	+
185		Large Trustee for the term, and recuse herself from any motions that may qualify as a confli	
187		of interest. If N. Jamison were to serve as an officer, it would be an "Inherent Conflict of	
			A
188		Interest" and an Ethics violation, which would go back to the Ethics Liaison and Selectboar for action.	a
189		ior action.	
190	6	OADD DUCINESS (Dublic commont on aganda itams limited to 5 minutes)	
191	6.	OARD BUSINESS (Public comment on agenda items limited to 5 minutes)	
192		Action to Approve TOG Municipal Complaint Form & Ethics Policy Final Version for	
193		SignaturesVT Code of Ethics Flow Chart to help identify if you may have a conflict of	
194		interest.	.1
195		The Municipal Complaint Form must be posted on the Town of Georgia website along with	the
196		Ethics policy.	
197		This Complaint Form can be filed through the Town of Georgia Ethics Liaison or through the	he
198		State of Vermont Ethics Commission website.	•
199		S. Katon will ensure all employees, boards, committees, and the like go through the State of	Ľ
200		Vermont Ethics training and submit their certificate of completion.	
201			
202		Motion to approve the Town of Georgia Municipal Complaint Form.	
203		Motion made by P. Jansen, Seconded by B. Dunsmore	
204		Voting Yea: B. Dunsmore, P. Jansen, C. Rosenquist, K. Senna	
205		Action: Signature of the Ethics Policy by the Selectboard	
206			
207		Roadside Acres Properties LLC-Easement Deed-Action to Approve and Sign-Boundry Line	e
208		Adjustments	
209		D. Bergstrom filled the Selectboard in on the project. The deed and mylar have been approv	red
210		by the attorney.	
211		Road maintenance by the Town of Georgia will not change.	
212			
213		Motion to accept the easement and sign the mylar.	
214		Motion made by B. Dunsmore, Seconded by C. Rosenquist.	
215		Voting Yea: B. Dunsmore, P. Jansen, C. Rosenquist, K. Senna	
216		Action: Mylar was signed.	
217			
218		Highbridge Bid Repairs-Rebid Advertisement & NoticeBridge 10 aka (Highbridge) Repair	
219		are going back out for rebid, bids will be due back to Town of Georgia for opening during the	ne
220		regular selectboard meeting on 3/24/2025.	
221			
222		Move to approve bid package as presented.	

223 224 225	Motion made by C. Rosenquist, Seconded by B. Dunsmore Voting Yea: B. Dunsmore, P. Jansen, C. Rosenquist, K. Senna
	Board Discussion regarding the sale of Parcel ID 112260000 to Robert Peet D. Bergstrom explained the parcel is listed as an undefined, "unbuildable" lot owned by the Town of Georgia. Deed research is still necessary to understand the initial subdivision of property and deed restrictions.
230 • 231	This parcel is maintained by Mr. Peet. The total parcel is 1 acre, both lots triangular in shape, but Mr. Peet is just interested in purchasing the front triangle.
232 • 233	D. Bergstrom will conduct deed research and will bring it back to the Selectboard at the next meeting.
234 235 E. 236 237	Town Electronic Signage Note: Logan Grimm reached out to S. Katon on Friday 3/7/2025, Stacy to follow up with Logan this week. Sign was on display at Town Meeting, what are next steps from the board?
237 238 239 240	L. Grimm will address the Selectboard at the 3/24/2025 meeting with an update and additional information about the electric signs.
241 F. 242 243 244	Oncore Renewable Energy-Corporate Donation Use-Action to Vote On Discussion on the \$20,000 Oncore donation, discussion for the funds to go towards signs for the community.
245 246 247	Motion to apply the \$20,000 grant to two electric signs for the Town of Georgia Motion made by P. Jansen, Seconded by C. Rosenquist. Voting Yea: B. Dunsmore, P. Jansen, C. Rosenquist, K. Senna
248 249 G. 250 • 251 252	2025 HVAC Contract BidsReview Bids S. Katon and T. Cadieux collected bids from four HVAC companies, bid papers were reviewed by the Selectboard. The bids include inspection, cleaning, and routine cleaning materials two times a year.
253 • 254	T. Cadieux discussed the quotes and gave his recommendation for the current vendor, 802 Electric.
255 256 257 258 259 260	Motion to approve HVAC bid for 802 Mechanical, 3-year contract for HVAC services for the four (4) Town buildings. Motion made by B. Dunsmore, Seconded by C. Rosenquist Voting Yea: B. Dunsmore, P. Jansen, C. Rosenquist, K. Senna
	Board Discussion regarding the Closing of Perrigo-Water and Waste Water treatment plant C. Rosenquist attended the GIDC meeting to discuss the plant closing and the future water services for the Industrial Park.
263 264 265 266 267 268	Perrigo used the majority of the water supply, with surrounding businesses in the Industrial complex using a minimal amount. Discussion on maintenance of the water system and use. The GDIC is setting up a meeting with Perrigo management for more information on potential for future business(es) to take over water service, or the potential for Town water and treatment services.
269 270 I.	Request for Consideration of the Board Sale of All or Part of Webster Town Forest Land

271 272			S. Katon explained the Request for Consideration of the Board Sale of All or Part of Webster Town Forest Land.
		•	
273 274		•	The Webster family submitted a letter to the Selectboard requesting a sale back of some or all of the Webster Town Forest land.
275		٠	Action- S. Katon will send the family a letter in response, on behalf of the Selectboard, stating
276			the land was intended for use as a Town Forrest and at this time the Selectboard is not
277			interested in sale of the property.
278			
279		J.	A Resolution was prepared by the Town Attorney to correct errors in the Town Meeting Day
280			Warning.
281			
282			Chair K. Senna read the Resolution language aloud.
283			
284			Motion to approve the Resolution as written.
285			Motion made by P. Jansen, Seconded by B. Dunsmore
286			Voting Yea: B. Dunsmore, P. Jansen, C. Rosenquist, K. Senna
287			Action- The Selectboard signed the Resolution.
288			
289		К.	Vacancy on Selectboard
290		٠	A Selectboard member must be appointed for a 1-year term. Notification of the vacancy will be
291			sent out to the public, a request for a Letter of Intent to be submitted by 4/14/2025. The
292			vacancy will be advertised in the Saint Albans Messenger, posted on the Town website, posted
293			throughout the town and communicated via social media.
294			
295	7.		BLIC COMMENT (For items not on agenda)
296			participants must clearly state their names. Appropriate actions will be considered once the
297		Sele	ectboard has reviewed the information provided and necessary subsequent research.
298			
299		Pub	olic Comment:
300		٠	N. Lavallee requested the Bovat Road maintenance project be added to the 3/24/2025
301			Selectboard meeting. This project includes land around the cell tower and Bovat Road. N.
302			Lavallee and other Bovat Road residents would like to discuss the efforts to complete needed
303			road work, culvert prices, and assistance from the Town in grading the road.
304		•	P. Jansen suggested a special meeting with the Bovat Road residents, Selectboard and T.
305			Cadieux to view the road and get information about what is needed for the project.
306		•	Chair K. Senna asked N. Lavallee to reach out to S. Katon to get on the 3/24/2025 Agenda
307			regarding the Bovat Road project.
308			
309	8.	CO	RRESPONDENCE
310			
311	9.	UN	FINISHED BUSINESS
312			
313		А.	Bridge # 10-High Bridge
314			
315		B.	Bridge # 28 Mill River Bridge
316			
317		C.	Sherwood Forest 3 Acre Rule
318			

319	D. Georgia Public Library - Electrical Work Project
320	• There are currently two bids for the electrical work, waiting on the 3rd bid to come in.
321	• The improvement plan for the library will require a committee between Library Trustees and
322	the Selectboard to create a plan to move forward. Library Trustees are invited to the 3/24/2025
323	Selectboard meeting to discuss the improvement plan for the library.
324	
325	E. 2025 Manual Transfer Switch Project-Town Garage
326	у . С
327	F. Public Works Update
328	• T. Cadieux gave an update to the Selectboard on the status of road maintenance with the Town
329	garage staff. Road work due to erosion and potholes is a priority in the coming weeks.
330	• The paving grant is on hold from the State.
331	• The Tennis Court maintenance proposal fell within the allocated budget, the Selectboard
332	approved T. Cadieux signing the order for work to commence.
333	 Georgia Beach Seasonal Caretaker, Bob LaRose, is not able to run the beach this summer. The
334	Town will need to run an ad for the seasonal position to be filled, 22-30 hours a week from
335	Spring to Fall.
336	 The Selectboard is in favor of the purchase of a "Hot Box" for sale on a municipal website for
337	\$200. This will allow the reuse of paving materials.
338	\$200. This will allow the rease of paving indertais.
339	
340	10. OTHER
341	A. Discussion of Petition for T-Mobil Northeast LLC
342	T-Mobile is petitioning to use the Towers, American Tower. How is this different than the
343	original contract? Aren't they already on it? How are they coming up with the pricing
344	structure?
345	 No action needed by the Selectboard, just on notice of the use of the cell tower.
346	
347	11. PLAN NEXT MEETING AGENDA
348	A. 3/24/2025 at 6:00pm
349	
350	12. EXECUTIVE SESSION (if needed, pursuant to 1 V.S.A sec 313)
351	K. Senna would entertain a motion to enter into executive session to discuss personnel matters-
352	issues of interactions of public with the Town Administrator, which premature disclosure or
353	discussion may be detrimental to the board in itself and/or individuals involved.
354	K. Senna moves that we enter into executive session to discuss such personnel matters with S.
355	Katon, D. Bergstrom, L. Hobart and K. Caspers under the provisions of Title 1, Section
356	313(a)(1)(A) of the Vermont Statutes. (State Time.)
357	
358	Motion to move into Executive Session at 8:25pm
359	Motion made by Rosenquist, Seconded by Dunsmore
360	Voting Yea: Dunsmore, Jansen, Rosenquist, Senna
361	
362	Motion to invite S. Katon, D. Bergstrom, L. Hobart and K. Caspers to join the Executive Session
363	Motion made by Rosenquist, Seconded by Dunsmore
364	Voting Yea: Dunsmore, Jansen, Rosenquist, Senna
365	-
	Voting Yea: Dunsmore, Jansen, Rosenquist, Senna

367	Motion made by Dunsmore, Seconded by Rosenquist
368	Voting Yea: Dunsmore, Jansen, Rosenquist, Senna
369	
370	No Action taken following Executive Session.
371	
372	13. ADJOURN
373	Motion to adjourn at 9:12pm
374	Motion made by Jansen, Seconded by Dunsmore.
375	Voting Yea: Dunsmore, Jansen, Rosenquist, Senna
376	
377	
378	Agendas are posted to the Town website, four designated places within the Town of Georgia
379	(Town Clerk's Office, Georgia Public Library, Maplefields & Georgia Market), and e-mailed to
380	the local media.
381	Minutes and meeting videos are posted on the Town of Georgia website.
382	Signed: Stacy Katon, Town Administrator
383	Phone: 802-524-3524 Fax: 802-524-3543 Website: <u>townofgeorgia.com</u>